# **Electrical Signals In Plants**

A Dissertation for

ELE 625 Dissertation

Credits: 16

Submitted in partial fulfillment of Masters Degree

M.Sc in Electronics

Goa University

in the subject of Electronics

by

SHAHANA SAYED Roll number: 22P0360014 Under the supervision of Dr.Aniketh A. Gaonkar

School Of Physical and Applied Science Physics discipline



### Goa University

April 2024



Examined by:

#### DECLARATION BY STUDENT

I hereby declare that the data presented in this Dissertation report entitled, "ELECTRI-CAL SIGNALS IN PLANTS" is based on the results of investigations carried out by me in the Physics Discipline at the School of Physical and Applied Sciences, Goa University under the Supervision of Dr. Aniketh A. Gaonkar and the same has not been submitted elsewhere for the award of a degree or diploma by me. Further, I understand that Goa University or its authorities will be not be responsible for the correctness of observations / experimental or other findings given the dissertation.

I hereby authorize the University authorities to upload this dissertation on the dissertation repository or anywhere else as the UGC regulations demand and make it available to any. one as needed.

DATE:

PLACE: Goa University

Signature and Name of Student seat no.

Shahana Dayed 22P0360014 i

#### COMPLETION CERTIFICATE

This is to certify that the dissertation report "ELECTRICAL SIGNALS IN PLANTS" is a bonafide work carried out by Ms. Shahana Sayed under my supervision in partial fulfilment of the requirements for the award of the degree of M.Sc in Electronics at the School of Physical and Applied Sciences, Goa University.

Signature and Name of Supervisor: Dr.Aniketh A. Gaonkar

Date:

Signature of Dean of the School:

Date:

Place: Goa University



#### ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

I would like to express my deepest gratitude to Dr.Aniketh A. Gaonkar, my research guide, whose unwavering support, invaluable guidance, and insightful feedback were instrumental in shaping this dissertation. He provided constant encouragement and direction, whose guidance during the dissertation provided invaluable insights, challenged my perspectives, and encouraged me to strive for excellence in my research endeavors. pushing me to explore new perspectives and refine my ideas, thereby enriching the quality of this work.

Furthermore, I extend my heartfelt appreciation to School of Physical and Applied Sciences, Goa University for providing me with the resources needed to carry out my dissertation. Finally, I would like to thank my family and friends for their constant love and support.

# Contents

1	INJ	TRODUCTION	3		
	1.1	GENERATION OF ELECTRICAL SIGNALS IN PLANTS	6		
	1.2	MIMOSA PUDICA	11		
	1.3	LITERATURE REVIEW	14		
	1.4	MOTIVATION	22		
	1.5	OBJECTIVES	24		
<b>2</b>	ME	THOD:Acquiring Plant Signals	27		
	2.1	CIRCUIT DESIGNING	28		
	2.2	EXPERIMENTAL SETUP	30		
		2.2.1 Electrode Placement	30		
	2.3	SIGNAL ACQUISITION	32		
	2.4	AMPLIFICATION	33		
	2.5	DATA ANALYSIS	34		
	2.6	INTERPRETATION AND CONCLUSION	35		
3	THE DESIGN AND PRINCIPLE OF AMPLIFYING CIRCUIT				
	3.1	ARDUINO	38		
		3.1.1 Benifits of arduino	38		
	3.2	COMPONENTS	40		
		3.2.1 IC-CA3140	41		
		3.2.2 IC-AD623	44		
		3.2.3 IC-INA114	47		
		3.2.4 VOLTAGE REGULATORS	49		
	3.3	CIRCUIT DIAGRAM	51		

	3.4	CODE	USED FOR ARDUINO	55
	3.5	PRIN	CIPLE	57
	3.6	OBSE	RVATIONS	58
		3.6.1	Tapping on the mimosa plant	59
		3.6.2	Wounding the plant by cutting	61
		3.6.3	Wounding the plant by burning	63
		0.0.0		
4	AP	PLICA	TION OF THE OBTAINED SIGNAL	65
4 5	AP	PLICA	TION OF THE OBTAINED SIGNAL	6571
4 5	<b>AP</b> <b>RES</b> 5.1	PLICA SULTS RESU	TION OF THE OBTAINED SIGNAL AND CONCLUSION LT	65 71 71
4 5	<b>AP</b> <b>RES</b> 5.1 5.2	PLICA SULTS RESU CONC	TION OF THE OBTAINED SIGNAL AND CONCLUSION LT	<ul> <li>65</li> <li>71</li> <li>71</li> <li>73</li> </ul>
4 5	<b>AP</b> <b>RES</b> 5.1 5.2 5.3	PLICA SULTS RESU CONC FUTU	TION OF THE OBTAINED SIGNAL AND CONCLUSION LT	<ul> <li>65</li> <li>71</li> <li>71</li> <li>73</li> <li>75</li> </ul>

# List of Figures

1.1	Action potential	7
1.2	action potential and voltage	9
1.3	Mimosa Pudica	11
2.1	Structure diagram of the electrical signals detection system for plant	27
2.2	Placement of the electrodes	28
3.1	Arduino uno board	38
3.2	CA3140 Pinout	41
3.3	AD623 Pinout	45
3.4	INA114 Pinout	47
3.5	LM7805	49
3.6	lM7905	50
3.7	Schematic diagram of electrical signals amplifying circuit for plant	51
3.8	Setup of electrical signals amplifying circuit for plant	52
3.9	circuit connection $\ldots$	53
3.10	tapping on the mimosa plant	59
3.11	Cutting the plant(leaf) $\ldots$	61
3.12	Cutting the plant(leaf) action potential	62
3.13	Burning the plant(leaf)	63
3.14	Burning the plant(leaf) action potential	64
4.1	robot	66
4.2	robot	67

#### ABSTRACT

This disertation serves to introduce and elaborate on the characteristics of electrical signals present in higher plants with the help of their action potentialand variation potentials, shedding light on their significant physiological implications also known as electrophysiology. The impact of various environmental stimuli on altering the electrical potential of plants is thoroughly explained. It goes on to rigorously evaluate the diverse measurement techniques employed for studying electrical signals in plants, with the utilization of gel electrodes. Furthermore, a succinct overview of the practical applications of these methods in investigating plant electrical signals is also provided.

Delving deeper into the subject, the complex ionic mechanisms responsible for electrical activity in plants are examined in relation to their responses to the environment, offering a foundation for quantitatively describing these signals. The dissertation proceeds to discuss a robotic model for interpreting the workings of electrical signal mechanisms in higher plants. It is emphasized, however, that further experimental validation is necessary to confirm the validity of this model.

# Chapter 1

# INTRODUCTION

Understanding the electrical signaling mechanisms in plants not only provides valuable insight into how they perceive and respond to their environment but also offers a fascinating glimpse into the sophisticated mechanisms that allow plants to thrive. While plants lack specialized excitable cells like neurons found in animals, they have developed intricate ways of generating electrical signals in response to an array of stimuli, showcasing their remarkable adaptability and resilience in the face of changing conditions. These signals, encompassing action potentials and variation potentials, play pivotal roles in orchestrating a vast array of plant physiological processes and fine-tuning responses to environmental cues, showcasing the intricate dance of nature's interconnected systems.

The action potential, a phenomenon typically associated with the nerve cells of animals, represents a swift and ephemeral change in membrane potential triggered by a stimulus in plants. Although less common in plants, action potentials can manifest in select specialized cells, as evidenced in fascinating examples like the Venus flytrap and Mimosa pudica, where rapid depolarization and repolarization enable swift movements in response to external stimuli. This ability highlights the plant kingdom's versatility in utilizing electrical signals for adaptive behaviors and underscores the remarkable evolutionary processes at play in shaping plant responses.

In addition to action potentials, plants also exhibit variation potentials, which stand out as slower and more enduring shifts in membrane potential that traverse plant tissues to convey essential information. These variation potentials arise in response to mechanical stress, herbivory, or environmental factors, serving as long-distance signals that orchestrate coordinated plant responses, exemplifying the intricate web of communication within the botanical world. While differing in speed and characteristics from action potentials, variation potentials play an indispensable role in plant signaling, hinting at the plant kingdom's hidden complexities and adaptive strategies that have evolved over millennia.

By delving into the generation and propagation of these intricate electrical signals in plants, researchers unravel the nuanced ways in which plants interact with their surroundings, adapting and thriving in diverse ecosystems. The study of action potentials and variation potentials not only sheds light on fundamental aspects of plant behavior but also paves the way for innovative applications in agricultural practices, environmental monitoring, and sustainable solutions for crop protection and ecosystem management, emphasizing the far-reaching implications of this research for enhancing our understanding of plant life and fostering harmonious coexistence with the natural world.

The intricate world of plants' electrical impulses is truly captivating, acting as the silent orchestrators of their breathtaking developmental processes, growth patterns, and dynamic responses to the changing environment that surrounds them. It is almost magical how these electrical signals play such a pivotal role in guiding plants through their life cycles. There is an awe-inspiring beauty in how this electrical activity stands as a cornerstone of plant biology, nurturing a multitude of essential physiological functions within their intricate systems. At the heart of this phenomenon lies the intricate dance of key ions such as calcium (Ca2+), potassium (K+), and chloride (Cl-) as they traverse across cellular membranes, sculpting the landscape for electrical potentials to unfurl, reminiscent of the mesmerizing action potentials that thrum through the neurons of animals. The symphony of ions creates vital gradients that not only sustain plant life but also serve as the unseen conduits that connect plants to their world, enabling them to adapt, thrive, and flourish in the ever-changing tapestry of nature's design. Every pulse of electricity coursing through a plant is a testament to its resilience and adaptability, a rhythmic beat that echoes the resilience of life itself in the face of myriad challenges and transformations.

Parallel to animal nerve impulses, the action potential remains a pivotal form of plant

electrical activity, showcasing plant cells' remarkable ability to swiftly modify their membrane potential when stimulated by diverse triggers such as physical contact, light exposure, or biochemical signals. This adaptability facilitates the seamless propagation of crucial electrical messages across various plant tissues, demonstrating a versatile communication network that can function both locally, within individual cells or tissues, and extensively through the intricate network of vascular tissues that are specialized for precisely this purpose.

The significance of these electrical signals manifests in plants' multifaceted responsiveness to their immediate environments, enabling them to swiftly react and adapt to changing conditions. This responsiveness includes the transmission of crucial signals from areas of injury to initiate vital defense mechanisms, such as the synthesis of protective compounds or the regulation of stomatal closure to minimize water loss effectively. Additionally, by fostering communication among different sections of the plant, electrical impulses actively contribute to coordinating growth responses, including various tropisms that dictate plant movement in response to specific directional stimuli like light or gravity.

In essence, the intricate web of electrical signaling within plants represents a sophisticated form of communication that empowers them to sense, interpret, and respond to environmental cues with remarkable precision and efficiency. Delving deeper into this realm of plant physiology not only enriches our understanding of their biological intricacies but also unveils promising avenues for leveraging this knowledge in diverse fields such as biotechnology, agriculture, and ecology, where the potential applications of harnessing plant electrical signaling are endless.

# 1.1 GENERATION OF ELECTRICAL SIGNALS IN PLANTS

Plants, fascinating organisms with intricate signaling systems, rely on various pathways to communicate important information throughout their structures. These signaling pathways include hydraulic mechanisms, such as pressure step and mass flow, which play a crucial role in transporting nutrients and signaling molecules. Additionally, plants employ electrical pathways that involve distinct impulses like the action potential (AP), variation potential (VP), and system potential (SP), each contributing to systemic communication within the plant.

The action potential (AP) serves as a transient depolarization event that travels systemically with a characteristic impulse form, showcasing variable durations across different plant species. From locomotive plants with AP lengths of several seconds to regular plants with spans of a few tens of seconds, the amplitude of APs can range from tens to hundreds of millivolts. Understanding the concept of threshold is pivotal in comprehending how APs develop, with the activation of voltage-dependent Ca2+ channels playing a significant role despite the mystery surrounding their exact chemical composition.

Notably, the activation of Ca2+ induces the opening of anion channels while causing the deactivation of the H+-ATPase in the plasmalemma, leading to the initiation of the AP depolarization phase. Subsequently, the release of K+ ions and the reactivation of the H+pump contribute to the repolarization phase, highlighting the intricate processes involved in transmitting the electrical impulse. Through the phloem elements, an AP, being a self-propagating electrical signal, travels at speeds of 1–10 cm/s, influencing neighboring cells through membrane connections in plasmodesmata.

As the electrical impulse propagates, it triggers shifts in the concentrations of ions like Ca2+ and H+ within the cells, serving as key modulators for intracellular mechanisms that instigate systemic reactions linked to the action potential. This intricate network of signaling pathways in plants showcases the remarkable sophistication and adaptability of their communication systems in responding to various environmental stimuli and internal



cues to ensure optimal growth and survival.

Figure 1.1: Action potential

Here is the detailed diagram illustrating the intricate time course of ion dynamics within a plant cell, showcasing the delicate balance between ion inflow and outflow in response to non-damaging stimulation. This scenario unfolds within a resting cell where the separation of Ca2+ and Cl- ions from their electrochemical equilibrium sets the stage for subsequent events upon external stimulation. The initiation of excitement triggers a cascade of events, starting with the activation of Ca2+-dependent permeability anion channels on the membrane. This activation prompts depolarization, facilitating the influx of calcium ions into the cytosol. Subsequently, the activation of Cl- channels comes into play, inducing the outflow of chloride ions along their electrochemical potential gradient.

As this process unfolds, the cytoplasm's calcium ion concentration steadily increases, driving further depolarization and altering the resting potential of the cell. To counteract this increasing depolarization, mechanisms are employed to reduce membrane depolarization. These mechanisms involve the suppression of Ca2+ influx and the facilitation of Ca2+ resequestration. By doing so, the stimulation for Cl- flux is effectively nullified, while simultaneously activating the outward-rectifying voltage-gated K+ channels that trigger a controlled efflux of potassium ions, thus contributing to the fine-tuning of the cell's electrochemical balance and restoring its homeostasis.



Figure 1.2: action potential and voltage

Action potentials in plants, while sharing some similarities with those in animal neurons, have distinct characteristics.[4].

**Polarization**: In the resting state, plant cells have a negative electrical charge inside relative to the outside. This polarization is maintained by the active transport of ions across the cell membrane, such as the pumping of potassium (K+) ions into the cell and sodium (Na+) ions out of the cell.

**Depolarization**: When a stimulus is applied to a plant cell, such as mechanical stimulation or exposure to light, it can cause a rapid change in membrane potential known as depolarization. Depolarization occurs when ion channels on the cell membrane open, allowing positive ions like calcium (Ca2+) to flow into the cell, reducing the negative charge inside the cell.

**Threshold**: The depolarization of a plant cell must reach a certain threshold level to trigger an action potential. This threshold is the minimum level of depolarization required to open voltage-gated ion channels and initiate an action potential.

Action Potential: If the depolarization of the plant cell reaches the threshold level, voltage-gated ion channels open, allowing a rapid influx of calcium ions (Ca2+), which further depolarizes the cell and triggers an action potential. This action potential is characterized by a rapid and transient change in membrane potential, similar to action potentials in animal neurons.

**Resting State**: After the action potential, the cell returns to its resting state through a process called repolarization. Ion channels close, and the cell actively pumps ions to restore the negative charge inside the cell, returning it to its polarized resting state.

Stimuli: Various stimuli can trigger depolarization and action potentials in plant cells, including mechanical stimulation (such as touch or wind), electrical stimulation, changes in light intensity or quality, temperature fluctuations, and exposure to certain chemicals or hormones.

Overall, action potentials in plants involve depolarization of the cell membrane in response to stimuli, reaching a threshold level to trigger an action potential, and subsequent repolarization to return the cell to its resting state. These electrical signals play crucial roles in plant responses to environmental cues and in coordinating physiological processes such as growth, development, and defense.

## 1.2 MIMOSA PUDICA



Figure 1.3: Mimosa Pudica

When the Mimosa pudica plant delicately senses the gentle touch or experiences the subtle stimulation of its surrounding environment, a remarkable phenomenon unfolds within its cellular framework [3]. This intriguing cascade of events is orchestrated by the plant's intricate cellular machinery, culminating in the initiation of a rapid and coordinated response mechanism. This sophisticated response is characterized by the propagation of a unique form of electrical signaling, often referred to as the "action potential-like response," which sets in motion a precise sequence of ion movements. Of particular significance are the selective dynamics of calcium and potassium ions, as they skillfully traverse the cell membranes of specialized cells residing in the plant's sensitive pulvini regions. Through this intricate interplay of bioelectrical activity, the Mimosa pudica plant show-cases its remarkable ability to harness the power of electrical signaling in a manner distinct

from traditional neural action potentials [10], demonstrating a fascinating convergence of plant physiology and bioelectrical phenomena that continues to captivate researchers and enthusiasts alike.

Here's a simplified overview of the process:

**Stimulation**: When a physical stimulus, such as a touch, is applied to the plant, a specialized type of cells known as pulvini cells are activated and responsible for detecting this mechanical interaction. These pulvini cells possess the unique ability to interpret and respond to external forces, translating the specific sensation of touch into a signal that triggers a series of complex biochemical reactions within the plant's system. This intricate mechanism not only enables the plant to sense its environment but also plays a crucial role in its overall growth and development. Through the detection of physical stimuli, such as touch, the plant's pulvini cells serve as a vital connection between the external world and its internal regulatory processes, orchestrating a delicate balance between responsiveness and resilience.

Ion Movement: The mechanical stimulus acts as a catalyst, generating a cascade of events that culminates in the orchestrated movement of ions across the semi-permeable barriers of cell membranes. Specifically, calcium ions, revered for their pivotal significance in cellular signaling, respond to this trigger by embarking on a transformative journey that transcends mere physical displacement to embody a symphony of communication within the intricate tapestry of plant cells. In this elaborate dance of biochemical interactions, calcium ions emerge as conductors orchestrating intricate signaling processes that dictate the fate and responses of plants at a cellular level. Emanating from this fundamental trigger, a nuanced web of molecular conversations unfolds, shaping the dynamic world of plant biology and underpinning the essential mechanisms that govern growth, development, and adaptation in the highly evolved realm of plant life.

**Propagation**: The movement of ions, driven by the influx and efflux of charged particles across the cell membrane, initiates a dynamic process that elicits a rapid alteration in the membrane potential. This shift in electrical charge sets off a chain reaction, triggering the propagation of an electrical signal that swiftly traverses through the intricate network

of plant tissues. As this electrical impulse courses through the plant, it serves as a crucial messenger, relaying vital information from the stimulated region to distant parts of the plant organism. In doing so, a sophisticated coordination is established, orchestrating a synchronized response across various physiological pathways and ensuring that the plant can effectively adapt and respond to stimuli in its environment.

**Rapid Closure**: The electrical signal, a crucial messenger within the complex plant physiology, plays a pivotal role in orchestrating the rapid loss of turgor pressure in the specialized cells located in the pulvini region of the leaf. As this electrical impulse courses through the vascular bundles, it triggers a cascade of molecular events that ultimately result in the controlled and synchronized folding action of the leaflets towards the center. This intricate process, finely tuned through evolution, allows the plant to respond effectively to external stimuli such as touch or changes in light intensity. By intricately coordinating the manipulation of turgor pressure within these specific cells, the plant achieves a coordinated and efficient folding mechanism that optimally balances the need for protection and energy conservation.

While this electrical signaling in Mimosa pudica shares some similarities with action potentials in animals, it's important to note that the mechanism and purpose are different. In animals, action potentials are the fundamental signals for transmitting information within the nervous system. In plants like Mimosa pudica, electrical signaling serves to coordinate rapid responses to environmental stimuli, such as touch or vibration, helping the plant to defend itself against potential threats.

### **1.3 LITERATURE REVIEW**

In the literature review on electrical signals in higher plants[7], various characteristics of electrical signals in plants and their physiological significance are discussed .Types and features of electrical signals in plants.By considering the electrical excitation of plants, electrical signals in plants can be divided into three types: **local electrical potential (LEP)**, action potential (AP) and variation potential (VP). The impact of environmental factors like light and temperature on the electrical potential of plants is detailed . Measurement techniques for electrical signals in plants, including intracellular measurement, extracellular measurement, and the patch-clamp technique, are evaluated . Additionally, the ionic mechanism of electrical activity in plants concerning environmental responses is examined to provide a theoretical basis for understanding electrical signals in plants.

Method Reduction of membrane depolarisation takes place by the suppression of Ca2+ influx and promotion of Ca2+ resequestration. This cancels stimulation for Cl- flux and also triggers K+ efflux through the activation of (outward-rectifying) voltage-gated K+ channels Intracellular and extracellular measurements, the patch-clamp technique, and the non-invasive microelectrode vibrating probe technique are methods used to analyze electrical activities in plants. Among these techniques, intracellular measurement can directly record the value of a single cell membrane potential, whereas extracellular measurement observes a signal that results from the depolarization-repolarization process in a group of cells. Furthermore, a fantastic new electrophysiological method is the non-invasive microelectrode vibrating probe technique, which is capable of measuring the dynamic influxes and effluxes of tiny molecules and ions from organs and cells. It can display the membrane's channel activity and establish a connection between the molecular fluxes and the significant physiological processes to which they are connected. Variation in the properties of the electrical impulses in plants can be seen at different levels using different measurement techniques.

This indicates a shared mechanism involving ion channels for long-distance information transmission within plant cells similar to animal cells. Notably, recent advancements in plant biology have shed light on the broader implications of electrical signalling beyond just triggering visible responses in plants like Mimosa pudica and Dionaea muscipula.

It has become evident that these electrical signals play a vital role in regulating various physiological processes in ordinary plants as well. Through examining the latest findings in the field, it is apparent that understanding the generation, propagation, and transmission of diverse electrical signals within plant bodies is of paramount importance. Furthermore, exploring the multifaceted physiological effects of these signals provides valuable insights into the intricate mechanisms underlying plant responses to external stimuli. This review aims to showcase the intricate interplay between electrical signals and plant physiology, emphasizing their significance in shaping plant behavior and adaptation to changing environmental conditions. **Conclusion:** The dynamic response of higher plants to environmental changes during growth and development is intrinsically challenging. Animals and higher plants have very different AP kinetics and morphologies. Even though there are many stories detailing electrical signals in higher plants, similar to how the Hodgkin-Huxley equation works in animals, there are few quantitative mechanism models that produce accurate prediction of the reported forms of electrical signals in higher plants. To encourage more research into the electrical events in plants, a mathematical model must be provided. To enhance the quantitative forecasting of the electrical signal time-course in higher plants, a deeper comprehension of the electrogenic ion transport systems, including their density and the associated voltage-dependent kinetics, is necessary. An accurate kinetic model of the electrical signals in plants can be supported by the application of new measurement techniques, such as the patch-clamp technique and the non-invasive microelectrode vibrating probe technique, as well as contemporary modeling and stimulation techniques.

The research to date has tended to focus on a comprehensive understanding of the pivotal role of calcium ions as second messengers in plant signaling pathways[1], particularly in response to environmental stimuli. The objective is to delve into how individual calcium sensors, such as calcium-dependent protein kinases (CPKs) and calmodulin-like proteins (CMLs), integrate inputs from diverse environmental changes to drive specific plant responses.

Plants being sessile organisms, rely on intricate signaling networks to perceive and respond to environmental cues effectively. Calcium ions act as mediators, orchestrating cellular responses to various stresses, including temperature fluctuations, salt stress, drought, pathogen attacks, and herbivore assaults. Each environmental stimulus triggers distinct patterns of intracellular calcium variations, termed calcium signatures, which encode information about the initiating stimulus. Decoding these calcium signals is essential for eliciting specific plant responses, facilitated by calcium sensor proteins.

It emphasizes the significance of CPKs and CMLs as key players in calcium-mediated signaling pathways. These proteins exhibit diverse affinities for calcium ions and are strategically located within the cell, enabling them to regulate downstream targets in response to specific calcium signals. CPKs, with their kinase activity, and CMLs, acting as calcium relays, contribute to the specificity of plant responses by transducing calcium signals into distinct biological outcomes.

The discussion focuses on how individual calcium sensors, particularly CMLs and CPKs, serve as hubs in signaling pathways activated by both abiotic and biotic stresses. Examples from studies elucidate the multifaceted roles of these sensors in modulating plant responses to diverse environmental challenges. Notably, certain calcium sensors exhibit dual functions in both abiotic and biotic stress responses, underscoring their versatility in integrating signaling inputs.

The review presents hypotheses on the mechanisms underlying the specificity of plant responses mediated by calcium sensors. It proposes that the spatial and temporal dynamics of calcium signals, coupled with the localization and expression of calcium sensors and their downstream targets, dictate the routing of signaling information towards appropriate adaptive responses. Additionally, the formation of signaling complexes or scaffolds involving calcium channels and downstream effectors may contribute to the specificity of plant signaling pathways.

Overall, it insights into the intricate interplay between calcium signaling components and environmental stimuli, shedding light on the mechanisms by which plants perceive and respond to their surroundings.

It has been suggested that the Ca2+ ion is widely acknowledged as a pivotal second messenger within the intricate signaling cascades that connect the perception of external stimuli to the adaptive responses exhibited by plants[1]. Notably, soon after plants sense changes in their environment, such as fluctuations in temperature, exposure to salt stress, water scarcity, attacks by pathogens, or feeding by herbivores, there occurs a significant shift in the levels of free calcium ions within the plant cells. These altered calcium concentrations exhibit distinct variations in their spatial and temporal attributes, including specific locations within the cell, the amplitude of the changes, and the speed at which the alterations occur. These unique characteristics are directly influenced by the type and intensity of the external stimulus, effectively encoding essential information derived from the initial trigger. This encoded information is believed to play a critical role in initiating a tailored response by deciphering the signals through interactions with calcium-binding proteins. Drawing from recent studies, the exploration delves into the intricate mechanisms through which individual calcium sensors belonging to the families of calcium-dependent protein kinases and calmodulin-like proteins harmonize signals arising from diverse environmental cues. By examining the function of various members within these protein families, particularly those instances where they have been identified to participate in plant responses to both non-living stressors and living threats, the discussion sheds light on their significance as central nodes within the plant cellular networks. Furthermore, the dialogue presents compelling theories that elucidate how these crucial proteins orchestrate the signaling pathways to drive the plant towards the specific, appropriate responses required for survival and growth in ever-changing environmental conditions.

Low temperatures exert a significant negative influence on various aspects of plant biology[2], encompassing growth, development, crop yield, and nutritional value. Researchers are increasingly recognizing the fundamental role of calcium ion (Ca2+) signaling in enhancing plants' ability to withstand cold conditions. Despite progress in understanding the involvement of Ca2+ in plant responses to cold stress, there exists a critical need for further exploration and clarification in this area. Recent scientific investigations have shed light on how plants sense cold signals, prompting the regulation of Ca2+ channels and the consequent induction of transient Ca2+ fluxes. Moreover, investigations have elucidated the intricate interplay between Ca2+ signaling and crucial cellular pathways, including interactions with nitric oxide (NO), reactive oxygen species (ROS), and mitogen-activated protein kinases (MAPKs), which collectively culminate in the establishment of cold tolerance in plants. Notably, Ca2+ signaling assumes a pivotal role through the activation of Ca2+/calmodulin-mediated Arabidopsis signal responsive 1 (AtSR1/CAMTA3) when confronted with sudden drops in temperature. This comprehensive review provides a comprehensive overview of the current understanding of Ca2+ signaling-mediated cold tolerance mechanisms in plants, shedding light on the intricate molecular processes involved in plant adaptation to cold stress.

The most rapid methods of long distance communication between plant tissues and organs are bioelectrochemical signals that play a crucial role in transmitting information swiftly [6]. These signals, in the form of action potentials, propagate rapidly throughout the plant via electrified interfaces, ensuring efficient communication across distances. A potential pathway for the transmission of these electrical signals lies within the intricate phloem sieve-tube system, which forms a continuous network of plasma membranes. The phloem, functioning as an electrical conductor, facilitates the transmission of bioelectrochemical impulses over extensive distances within the plant. At the cellular level, plant cells exhibit distinct electrical potentials across membranes and within specific compartments, leading to intricate electrochemical phenomena. Subsequently, deep cytophysiological reactions occur, highlighting the complex interplay of electrical activity within plant structures. Moreover, the potential effects of Earth's electric double layer on plant electrical activity are a subject of investigation, shedding light on the interconnectedness of plants with their environment. Additionally, studies have shown the impacts of various factors such as uncouplers and acid rains on green plants. For instance, the uncoupler carbonyl cyanide- p- trifluoromethoxyphenyl hydrazone (FCCP) has been found to induce ultra-fast action potentials in soybeans while affecting the resting potential. In soybeans treated with FCCP, the propagation speed of action potentials can reach impressive velocities of up to 40 m s-1, demonstrating the profound influence of external factors on plant electrical dynamics. Moreover, the duration of single action potentials post-FCCP treatment is markedly reduced, emphasizing the intricate changes induced by these compounds in plant physiology. The addition of FCCP to soil has been shown to significantly alter the resting potential of plants, raising intriguing questions about the broader implications of such manipulations in plant electrophysiology. Consequently, employing automatic measurements of electrical potential difference proves to be an effective tool in advancing research in bioelectrochemistry and environmental plant electrophysiology [5]. By delving into the molecular mechanisms of transport processes and exploring the impact of external stimuli on plants, researchers continue to unveil the intricate interplay between electrical

activity and plant physiology, paving the way for deeper insights into the dynamic world of plant communication.

The phenomenon of electrical excitability and signaling in plants, which is commonly associated with their ability to respond rapidly to changes in their environment, has been a subject of extensive study in both algae and higher plants[5]. It is widely acknowledged that the presence of electrical signals, particularly action potentials (AP), in both animal and plant cells indicates the utilization of ion channels by plant cells to communicate over long distances. Over the past decade, significant advances in plant biology have shed light on the understanding that electrical signals not only govern rapid leaf movements in plants like Mimosa pudica and Dionaea muscipula but also play crucial roles in regulating various physiological processes in ordinary plants.

Recent progress in the study of electrical signaling in plants has emphasized the importance of exploring the generation and propagation mechanisms of diverse electrical signals within plant tissues. Understanding the ways in which these signals are transmitted throughout the plant body and their profound impacts on various physiological functions has become a focal point of research in the field. By delving deeper into the intricate processes underlying electrical signaling in plants, researchers have unveiled the intricate network that governs plant responses to external stimuli and internal stimuli, ultimately providing valuable insights into the intricate communication systems that plants employ to thrive and adapt in their environments.

Tomato plants, scientifically known as Lycopersicon esculentum, respond to insect attacks, crushing, and flaming by accumulating proteinase inhibitor 2 (pin2) mRNA not only in the treated leaves but also in distant ones[8]. While existing research primarily focuses on chemical systemic wound signals, this study investigates the potential influence of electrical or hydraulic signals on pin expression. To explore this, a mild flame was used to generate a systemic hydraulic signal, triggering a subsequent electrical response known as the variation potential (VP). Additionally, an electrical stimulus was employed to induce a systemic electrical signal, termed the action potential (AP). By analyzing the kinetic parameters of both the VP and AP, the researchers observed that flame-wounded plants consistently displayed significant electrical activity across the entire plant, coupled with a notable increase in pin2 mRNA levels within an hour of treatment. Furthermore, electrically stimulated plants transmitting the AP signal to the target leaf exhibited rapid and substantial upticks in pin2 mRNA expression. Conversely, plants that generated weak or no signals showed minimal changes in pin2 mRNA levels. Notably, both the VP and AP reached the target leaf before the noticeable accumulation of pin2 mRNA, indicating that, in addition to chemical signals, hydraulic-induced VPs and electrically induced APs also hold the capacity to stimulate pin2 gene expression throughout the plant.

The study conducted by Dziubinska, Filek, Koscielniak, and Trebacz in 2003, published in the Elsevier Journal of Plant Physiology, delved into the relationship between electrical activity, specifically variation and action potentials, and ethylene emission in thermally stimulated Vicia faba minor seedlings[9]. The findings revealed that when the upper leaf was scorched, a variation potential, either standalone or accompanied by action potentials, was triggered and propagated in a basipetal direction. Notably, the stimulated plants exhibited a significant increase in ethylene production in the lower, non-stimulated leaf compared to control plants. This elevated ethylene emission levels closely correlated with the amplitude of the electrical response observed. Intriguingly, no variation or action potential activities were detected when ethylene was directly introduced into the experimental leaf chamber. Additionally, the study highlighted a distinct circadian rhythm in ethylene emission levels when measured under different photoperiod conditions. The researchers concluded that the ion flux sequences identified as electrical responses to thermal stimuli serve as signals that prompt an enhancement in ethylene emission within the plant.

### 1.4 MOTIVATION

Studying electrical signals in plants is a fascinating and important field of research with numerous implications for various disciplines, including plant biology, ecology, and agriculture.

Unique Biological Phenomenon: The existence of electrical signaling in plants challenges traditional perceptions of plant behavior and intelligence. Exploring how plants generate and utilize electrical signals can uncover fascinating insights into their physiological processes and adaptive capabilities.

Understanding Plant Communication: Electrical signals in plants play a crucial role in intercellular communication and coordination of responses to environmental stimuli. By studying these signals, you contribute to our understanding of how plants sense and respond to changes in their surroundings, such as light, temperature, touch, and stress.

Potential Applications: Research on plant electrical signaling has practical applications in agriculture, including optimizing crop yield, improving stress tolerance, and developing sustainable farming practices. Understanding how plants use electrical signals to respond to stressors can lead to innovative strategies for enhancing plant health and productivity.

Cross-Disciplinary Connections: Studying electrical signals in plants often involves interdisciplinary collaboration, connecting fields such as biology, physics, biochemistry, and engineering. This interdisciplinary approach fosters creativity and innovation, allowing researchers to tackle complex questions from multiple perspectives.

Conservation and Environmental Impact: Investigating electrical signaling in plants can provide valuable insights into how plants adapt to changing environmental conditions, including climate change and habitat degradation. Understanding how plants respond to environmental stressors is essential for conservation efforts and ecosystem management.

Educational Outreach: Your research on electrical signals in plants has the potential to inspire curiosity and interest in science among students and the general public. By sharing your findings through outreach activities, such as science fairs, public lectures, or educational resources, you can contribute to science communication and promote scientific literacy.

Contributing to Scientific Knowledge: Every discovery in the field of plant electrical signaling contributes to our collective understanding of the natural world. Your research adds to the growing body of scientific knowledge and may pave the way for future breakthroughs in plant biology and related fields.

### 1.5 OBJECTIVES

#### 1. To design a circuitry to acquire plant signals.

Design a circuitry system capable of effectively acquiring plant signals for analysis and monitoring purposes. The circuitry should be able to accurately capture various biological signals emitted by plants, such as electrical impulses, or action potential of a plant underenvironmental stimuli. Additionally, the system should ensure minimal interference from external factors and provide reliable data output for further processing and analysis.

#### 2.Preprocessing and enhancing the received signals.

In the realm of plant signal analysis, it is imperative to meticulously craft signal processing algorithms that are custom-tailored to scrutinize and elucidate the intricate nuances embedded within the signals captured by the specially crafted circuitry system. These meticulously designed algorithms must be adept at not only efficiently preprocessing the raw signal data but also at deftly discerning and isolating pertinent features that underpin the essence of the plant signals. Moreover, they must be adept at judiciously deploying suitable analytical techniques that serve as a conduit to unearth profound insights regarding the physiological state and behavioral patterns exhibited by the plants. The overarching goal here is to seamlessly integrate robust signal processing methodologies into the crux of the analysis, thereby ensuring the seamless identification of discernible patterns, aberrations, and trends that are inextricably woven into the fabric of the acquired plant signals. By unraveling these hidden patterns and unlocking the potential latent within the signals, it paves the way for informed decision-making processes and the judicious optimization of growth strategies and health management protocols that are intricately intertwined with the well-being of the plants.

Ultimately, the synthesis of cutting-edge signal processing algorithms with insightful analysis serves as the bedrock for driving transformative changes and advancing the frontiers of plant science, empowering researchers, and practitioners alike to harness the power of data-driven strategies for fostering sustainable growth and flourishing ecosystems.

3.Study of effect of external factors on plant signals. In this research endeavor,

the primary aim is to closely examine how plants react to various external stressors like burning, cutting, or damage and dissect the intricate nature of their physiological responses and capacity for action potential. By subjecting the plants to meticulously controlled burning scenarios and continually monitoring and logging the ensuing signals detected by a precisely designed circuitry system, the intent is to unravel the nuanced behaviors of these botanical organisms in the face of adversity.

The investigation extends further to scrutinize the fluctuations in signal patterns not only during the burning incidents but also in the aftermath, with the ultimate goal of identifying key biomarkers that serve as telltale signs of stress levels and the severity of the inflicted damage. In essence, this study seeks to delve deep into the adaptive mechanisms that plants employ to combat and adapt to environmental stressors, offering invaluable insights into their resilience and survival strategies. The comprehensive analysis of these response patterns is poised to shed light on the diverse ways in which plants navigate the challenges posed by their surroundings, ultimately enhancing our understanding of their remarkable ability to thrive in the most unforgiving conditions. By weaving together data-driven observations and empirical evidence, this exploration promises to illuminate the fascinating interplay between plants and their environment, opening up new avenues for exploration and discovery in the realm of botanical science.

#### 4. Application of plant signal.

In order to innovate plant care methodologies, the implementation of advanced technology such as signal processing for decoding plant communication has proven to be instrumental. By effectively harnessing the knowledge derived from interpreting plant signals, an automated robotic system can be meticulously designed to intelligently relocate plant species with utmost precision and care. These intricate insights, coupled with the proficiency of signal processing techniques, enable the development of a robotic entity capable of independently detecting and responding to the physiological cues and environmental cues emitted by plants. The primary goal is to establish a technologically sophisticated mechanism that not only identifies optimal growth conditions for plants but also performs the crucial task of relocating them to these conducive environments with precision. Furthermore, this automated system is engineered to exhibit adaptability by fine-tuning environmental variables to ensure the sustained well-being and growth of the plants in their new settings. Through this innovative approach, the aim is to create a comprehensive solution that seamlessly integrates botanical science with cutting-edge robotic technologies to enhance plant sustainability and growth in diverse environmental settings.

# Chapter 2

# **METHOD:**Acquiring Plant Signals



Figure 2.1: Structure diagram of the electrical signals detection system for plant

Obtaining electrical signals from plants usually comprises employing highly specialized equipment and sophisticated techniques explicitly crafted to detect and quantify the faint electrical impulses produced by various plant tissues. This process necessitates the utilization of tools such as electrodes and amplifiers that can pick up and enhance these subtle signals, allowing researchers to record and analyze the intricate electrical responses generated by the plants in question. The methodology often involves carefully placing electrodes on specific plant parts, like leaves or stems, in a precise manner to establish a reliable connection for signal transmission. Additionally, researchers may need to apply specific solutions or gels to enhance the conductivity and signal strength, ensuring accurate data collection. Furthermore, the process might include controlling environmental variables, such as temperature and light exposure, to minimize external interference and optimize signal acquisition. Overall, this systematic approach enables scientists to delve into the fascinating realm of plant electrophysiology, shedding light on the intricate electrical communication that occurs within plant systems and contributing to our understanding of their responses to various stimuli and environmental conditions.



Figure 2.2: Placement of the electrodes

## 2.1 CIRCUIT DESIGNING

The design of the amplification circuit is of utmost importance as it plays a pivotal role in guaranteeing precise and dependable signal amplification throughout various applications. This critical process encompasses a series of intricate steps that necessitate meticulous attention to detail. It begins with a thoughtful selection of components, such as operational amplifiers (Op-Amps), resistors, and voltage regulators, each chosen for their specific characteristics and functionalities.

Furthermore, the configuration phase involves a systematic arrangement of these components in a manner that aligns with the unique requirements of the experiment or application at hand. Careful consideration is given to factors like gain settings, impedance matching, and noise reduction techniques to optimize the performance of the amplification circuit. Achieving the desired outcome relies on the synergy between theory and practical implementation, where theoretical knowledge is put into practice through hands-on experimentation and fine-tuning.

In conclusion, the design of an amplification circuit demands a holistic approach that integrates technical expertise, experimental rigor, and creative problem-solving skills.

### 2.2 EXPERIMENTAL SETUP

To begin the study, carefully select the specific plant species and tissue that will be the focus of your research. Take the time to choose the most suitable candidates that align with your scientific objectives. It is crucial to ensure that the chosen plant species and tissue will provide valuable insights into the research question at hand.

Next, diligently prepare the experimental environment to create the optimal conditions for your study. Pay close attention to key factors such as lighting, temperature, and humidity to guarantee that the plants are subjected to the most stable and controlled setting possible. The accuracy and reliability of your experimental results greatly depend on the meticulousness with which you set up and maintain the environmental conditions.

Once the experimental environment is ready, it is essential to place the gel electrodes on the selected plant tissue accurately. Carefully position the electrodes to establish good contact with the plant tissue while minimizing any potential interference with the plant's natural physiology. This step is crucial for precise data collection and ensuring that the signals recorded accurately represent the plant's responses to the experiment.

After positioning the electrodes correctly, connect them to the amplification and recording system with care and precision. Establishing a secure and reliable connection between the electrodes and the recording system is paramount for the successful monitoring and analysis of the plant's physiological responses. Take the time to double-check all connections and ensure that the system is functioning correctly before proceeding with data collection.

#### 2.2.1 Electrode Placement

Electrodes are carefully positioned on the plant tissue to pick up electrical signals. Different types of electrodes can be used depending on the specific application and the type of signal being measured. Common electrode placements include:

Surface electrodes: Placed directly on the surface of the plant tissue.

Intracellular electrodes: Inserted into the plant cells to measure membrane potentials. Gel electrodes:Electrodes attached to leaves, stems, or roots, depending on the area of
interest. When using gel electrodes for measuring electrical signals in plants, it's essential to prioritize the well-being of the plant and minimize any potential harm or stress. The use of gel electrodes that are designed to be non-invasive and gentle on plant tissues. Electrodes with soft, flexible materials and a design that allows for easy attachment without causing damage to the plant by sitting on the surface of the plant (leaves and stem) and not penetrating in the plant. The study of action potentials, which are abrupt shifts in membrane potential that go through plant cells, is one frequent use of gel electrodes in plant science. Researchers may track these electrical signals in real time and study how plants react to different stimuli by utilizing gel electrodes.

All things considered, the study of electrical impulses in plants using gel electrodes has shed light on the intricate processes that underlie plant physiology and behavior. It's a great illustration of how multidisciplinary methods can improve our comprehension of biological systems. Connect the electrodes to the amplification and recording system.

## 2.3 SIGNAL ACQUISITION

Begin recording electrical signals from the plant tissue using the gel electrodes. To initiate the process of recording electrical signals from the plant tissue using the gel electrodes, it is crucial to set up the equipment meticulously, ensuring that all connections are secure and the electrodes are properly placed for optimal signal detection. The sampling rate at which the signals are captured plays a vital role in accurately capturing the dynamic responses within the tissue, necessitating a thoughtful selection based on the expected frequency range of the signals. Additionally, before proceeding with any experimental manipulations, recording baseline signals is imperative as these provide a stable reference point against which any changes or perturbations can be evaluated, offering valuable insights into the inherent electrical activity of the plant tissue. By meticulously following these steps and procedures, we can ensure a robust and reliable data collection process that forms the foundation for comprehensive analysis and interpretation of the electrical dynamics within the plant tissue.

It is important to begin by recording baseline signals in order to create a consistent reference point that can be used for comparison when conducting experimental manipulations within a research study. By establishing these baseline signals, researchers are able to accurately measure any changes or deviations that may result from the experimental interventions being implemented. This process of recording baseline signals serves as a fundamental step in ensuring the validity and reliability of the study's findings. Without this reference point, it would be challenging to accurately assess the impact of the experimental manipulations on the variables of interest. T

## 2.4 AMPLIFICATION

Given that the electrical signals produced by plants are often exceedingly weak, effective amplification is imperative to ensure accurate measurement. Amplifiers play a pivotal role in this process, augmenting the plant-generated signals while concurrently mitigating the effects of noise and interference. By employing sophisticated amplification techniques, such as operational amplifiers or instrumentation amplifiers, the system aims to significantly boost the amplitude of the plant signals while preserving their fidelity. This amplification process is meticulously designed to maintain high signal-to-noise ratios, thereby enhancing the system's sensitivity and ensuring reliable detection of even the subtlest variations in plant electrical activity. Through meticulous optimization and calibration, the amplification stage serves as a crucial component in enabling precise and insightful analysis of plant electrophysiological responses to environmental stimuli.

Due to the intrinsic weakness of electrical signals from plants, amplification is necessary when examining these signals with gel electrodes. Amplification enables that signals may be consistently detected and evaluated by boosting signal strength, especially in the presence of background noise. Because of this improvement in signal-to-noise ratio, it is now simpler to identify minute variations in electrical activity linked to biological activities in plants. Amplification also increases the sensitivity of the measurement device, making it possible for researchers to more precisely identify and examine these changes. Amplification also makes signals more suitable for processing by other electrical components or long-distance transmission, preventing the loss of important data during further analysis.

## 2.5 DATA ANALYSIS

One approach to delve into the extensive dynamic range of signal responses involves methodically assessing the impact of various experimental conditions on cellular behavior. For example, manipulating the intensity of light exposure can activate specific molecular pathways in cells, resulting in a wide array of outcomes. Similarly, alterations in temperature levels have been demonstrated to have notable effects on the signaling processes that occur within cells, ultimately influencing their overall responsiveness. Moreover, the application of mechanical stimuli, such as shear stress or compression, can evoke distinct signaling cascades that effectively regulate the functions of cells. By conducting a comparative analysis of these cellular reactions under a diverse set of conditions, researchers can acquire valuable insights into the intricate mechanisms that govern cellular signaling, thereby providing a comprehensive understanding of how environmental cues shape cellular behavior in a complex manner. This comprehensive exploration helps shed light on the sophisticated interplay between external stimuli and intracellular responses, offering a deeper understanding of the intricate dynamics that drive cellular activities and responses to their surroundings.

## 2.6 INTERPRETATION AND CONCLUSION

In interpreting the findings within the realm of plant physiology and behavior, it is crucial to establish clear correlations between electrical signals and specific physiological processes or the influence of environmental stimuli on such signals. By delving into these relationships, we can draw informed conclusions about the fundamental role that electrical signaling plays in mediating plant responses to various stimuli, thereby shaping overall plant health and functionality. Further exploration may shed light on the intricacies of how plants sense and react to their environment through electrical mechanisms. Additionally, it is pertinent to consider the broader implications of these findings, paving the way for potential future research avenues that can deepen our understanding of plant signaling pathways and enhance agricultural practices for sustainable plant growth and development.

## Chapter 3

# THE DESIGN AND PRINCIPLE OF AMPLIFYING CIRCUIT

As shown in Figure 2.1, the detection system is a sophisticated setup comprising various crucial components such as electrodes, an amplifying circuit, an Arduino Uno board, and several other essential elements. Specifically, a gel electrode was meticulously employed to accurately capture and analyze the intricate electrical signals emanating from the plant's surface. The heart of the system lies within the amplifying circuit, meticulously designed and assembled to ensure optimal performance and precision. This circuit boasts a configuration involving three high-quality integrated operational amplifiers - the CA3140, AD623, and INA114 - all meticulously selected for their specific functionalities and capabilities. Additionally, this circuit incorporates two integrated voltage stabilizing circuits - the LM7805 and KA7905 - meticulously integrated to maintain a consistent and reliable power supply throughout the entire system. The integration of these components is essential in achieving accurate and reliable data collection, subsequently enabling the system to operate at peak efficiency. Furthermore, the data obtained from this intricate system is meticulously acquired utilizing a specialized instrumentation methodology based on the sophisticated Arduino platform. This methodological approach ensures precise and consistent data acquisition, allowing for detailed analysis and interpretation of the plant's electrical signals. In essence, the comprehensive design and functionality of this detection

system underscore its capability to provide valuable insights into the plant's physiological processes through the precise monitoring and analysis of its electrical activities.

## 3.1 ARDUINO



Figure 3.1: Arduino uno board

Arduino is an open-source electronics platform featuring user-friendly hardware and software tailored for hobbyists, artists, and designers interested in creating interactive projects. The platform's hardware comprises microcontroller boards with various inputs and outputs, enabling easy connection to sensors, actuators, and other electronic components. Supported by a simplified version of C/C++, Arduino's Integrated Development Environment (IDE) facilitates code writing, compiling, and uploading to the boards. Arduino fosters a vibrant community of users and developers, offering an extensive array of resources, tutorials, and forums for collaboration and support. With its versatility, expandability through shields and modules, and accessibility to learners of all ages, Arduino provides an ideal platform for experimentation, prototyping, and creative exploration in fields ranging from robotics and home automation to wearable technology and interactive art installations. Arduino is favored for its ease of use, versatility, affordability, community support, educational value, rapid prototyping capabilities.

#### 3.1.1 Benifits of arduino

Using Arduino for studying plant electrical signals offers a multitude of benefits, serving as a versatile and accessible platform for researchers, educators, and enthusiasts alike. Its user-friendly interface and open-source nature make it ideal for conducting hands-on experiments and investigations into plant electrophysiology. With Arduino, customization is key, allowing users to adapt the platform to suit specific research needs by modifying code, designing custom circuits, and integrating additional sensors and actuators. Modular in design, Arduino facilitates the integration of multiple sensors and data logging devices, enabling comprehensive measurements and analysis of plant electrical activity. Its capabilities for real-time data acquisition and analysis, coupled with compatibility with external devices, empower researchers to capture, process, and interpret plant electrical signals with ease. Moreover, Arduino's affordability and scalability make it accessible for both small-scale experiments and large-scale research endeavors, fostering innovation and discovery in the field of plant biology and environmental science while promoting education and outreach efforts.

## 3.2 COMPONENTS

- 1.
- 2. GEL ELECTRODES
- 3. CA3140 ICs(2)
- 4. AD623 IC
- $5. \ \mathrm{INA114} \ \mathrm{IC}$
- 6. 10k(2),470k,1k POTENTIOMETER
- 7. LM7805 VOLTAGE REGULATOR IC
- 8. KA7905 VOLTAGE REGULATOR IC
- 9. 9V BATTERY
- 10. ARDUINO UNO BOARD
- 11. CONNECTING WIRES AND JUMPER WIRES

#### 3.2.1 IC-CA3140

The CA3140 is a highly versatile operational amplifier (op-amp) integrated circuit renowned for its exceptional performance characteristics. Featuring an incredibly high input impedance, it minimizes signal loading in circuits, making it ideal for applications where signal integrity is paramount. Its wide supply voltage range, typically spanning from  $\pm 4V$  to  $\pm 18V$ , ensures compatibility with a variety of power supply configurations. With low input offset voltage and current, the CA3140 is well-suited for precision applications where accuracy is critical. Its high slew rate enables rapid response to changes in input signals, while its low input bias current minimizes errors in sensitive circuits. Furthermore, its ability to operate with single or dual power supplies and its wide temperature range make it adaptable to diverse circuit requirements. From amplification to active filtering and instrumentation amplifiers, the CA3140 finds extensive use across a broad spectrum of analog signal processing tasks. Despite its widespread application, users may also consider newer alternatives offering improved specifications and features to meet evolving design needs.



Figure 3.2: CA3140 Pinout

#### 3.2. COMPONENTS

Pin Number	Pin Name	Description
1,5	Offset NULL	Used to set offset voltage if required
2	Inverting Input (IN-)	The Inverting pin of the Op-Amp
3	Non- Inverting Input	The Non-Inverting Pin of the Op-Amp
	(IN+)	
4	V-	Connected to negative rail or ground
6	Output	Output pin of the Op-Amp
7	V+	Connected to a positive rail of supply voltage
8	STROBE	This pin can be used for phase compensation or to
		shut down the output stage.

#### CA3140 Features and Specifications

- $\bullet\,$  Supply Voltage: 4V to 36 V
- Output Current per Channel: 40 mA
- GBP Gain Bandwidth Product: 4.5 MHz
- CMRR Common Mode Rejection Ratio: 70 dB
- Operating Supply Current: 4 mA
- Voltage Gain dB: 100 dB
- Very High Input Impedance (ZIN) -1.5T $\Omega$
- Very Low Input Current (II) -10pA at  $\pm 15\mathrm{V}$
- Available in 8-Pin PDIP Package

#### 3.2.2 IC-AD623

The AD623 is a versatile integrated instrumentation amplifier designed to operate on single- or dual-supplies, providing a rail-to-rail output swing capability across a wide range of supply voltages, spanning from 2.7 V to 12 V. This exceptional feature allows the AD623 to adapt to various voltage requirements, making it suitable for a wide array of applications. Moreover, the AD623 offers a high degree of user flexibility through its unique design that enables single gain set resistor programming. This feature simplifies the configuration process for users while ensuring precision and accuracy in amplification. Moreover, the AD623 follows an industry-standard 8-lead pinout configuration, enhancing its compatibility with existing setups and facilitating ease of integration into different systems.

At the core of the AD623's performance is its outstanding accuracy, achieved through a specialized design that enhances the ac common-mode rejection ratio (CMRR) in conjunction with the gain setting. As a result, the AD623 effectively suppresses line noise harmonics, maintaining a consistent CMRR performance even at frequencies up to 200 Hz. This robust noise rejection capability ensures that the signals amplified by the AD623 remain clean and free of interference, making it an ideal choice for high-fidelity applications where signal integrity is crucial.

Furthermore, the AD623 boasts a broad input common-mode range that allows it to effectively amplify signals with common-mode voltages as low as 150 mV below ground. This extended common-mode range enhances the AD623's versatility, enabling it to handle a wide variety of input signals while maintaining high-quality amplification across different scenarios. Additionally, the AD623 demonstrates reliable performance across both dual and single polarity power supply configurations, ensuring consistent and optimal operation under varying power conditions. This robust power supply compatibility further highlights the versatility and reliability of the AD623, making it a dependable choice for diverse amplification needs in both professional and consumer applications.

An instrumentation amplifier is one kind of differential amplifier that includes buffer amplifiers that are allied to their input pins. This removes the requirement of impedance



Figure 3.3: AD623 Pinout

matching, so it is suitable in test and measurement equipment.

Pin Number	Pin Name	Description
1 ,8	(-, +)	These are the inverting and non-inverting pins that
		are used to locate the amplifier's gain by connect-
		ing an exterior resistor in between two pins.
2,3	(-IN, +IN)	These two pins are the inputs for the amplifier.
4,7	(-Vs, +Vs)	These two are the +Ve and-Ve power supply pins
		which provide single and dual supply operations.
5	(REF)	The reference i/p is mainly used to set up the
		common-mode voltage for the o/p.
6	(Output)	This pin is used to display the o/p of the instru-
		mentation amplifier.

#### Specifications and features of the AD623 instrumentation amplifier

- It is a rail to rail type instrumentation amplifier.
- It operates with a single and dual voltage supply.
- The maximum operating current is 550uA.
- Gain ranges from 1 to 1000.
- Set gain through simply one resistor.
- Its performance is high.
- It includes fewer inputs and output voltage offsets.

#### 3.2.3 IC-INA114

The INA114 is a low cost, general purpose instrumentation amplifier offering excellent accuracy. Its versatile 3-op amp design and small size make it ideal for a wide range of applications. A single external resistor sets any gain from 1 to 10,000. Internal input protection can withstand up to  $\pm 40$ V without damage.

The INA114 provides very low noise in most applications. For differential source impedances less than 1K ohm. The input impedance of the INA114 is extremely high-approximately 1010 ohm. However, a path must be provided for the input bias current of both inputs.



Figure 3.4: INA114 Pinout

Pin Number	Pin Name	Description
1 ,8	(-, +)	These are the inverting and non-inverting pins that
		are used to locate the amplifier's gain by connect-
		ing an exterior resistor in between two pins.
2,3	(-IN, +IN)	These two pins are the inputs for the amplifier.
4,7	(-Vs, +Vs)	These two are the +Ve and-Ve power supply pins
		which provide single and dual supply operations.
5	(REF)	The reference i/p is mainly used to set up the
		common-mode voltage for the o/p.
6	(Output)	This pin is used to display the o/p of the instru-
		mentation amplifier.

### Features and Specifications:-

- Ideal for precision data acquisition
- $\bullet\,$  Low offset voltage of 25µV ensures accuracy
- Low bias current of 500pA
- Single or dual power supply operation

#### 3.2.4 VOLTAGE REGULATORS

#### LM7805



Figure 3.5: LM7805

Voltage sources in a circuit may have fluctuations resulting in not providing fixed voltage outputs. A voltage regulator IC maintains the output voltage at a constant value. 7805 Voltage Regulator, a member of the 78xx series of fixed linear voltage regulators used to maintain such fluctuations, is a popular voltage regulator integrated circuit (IC).

The xx in 78xx indicates the output voltage it provides. 7805 IC provides +5 volts regulated power supply with provisions to add a heat sink.

#### 7805 Voltage Regulator IC Specifications

- Minimum Input voltage is 7V
- Maximum Input Voltage is 35V
- Current rating Ic = 1A
- Maximum Output Voltage VMax=5.2V
- Minimum Output Voltage VMin=4.8V

#### LM7905



Figure 3.6: 1M7905

The 7905 IC is an negative 5V regulator, meaning it provides -5V as output. The name 7905 signifies two meaning, "79" means that it is a negative voltage regulator and "05" means that it provides 5V as output. So our 7905 will provide a -5V output voltage.

The output current of this IC can go up to 1.5A, but the IC suffers from heavy heat loss hence a Heat sink is recommended for projects that consume more current.

#### Features and Specifications.

- 5V Negative Voltage Regulator.
- Output Voltage: -5V.
- Output Current: 1.5A.
- Minimum Input Voltage is 7V.
- Maximum Input Voltage is 25V.
- Operating current(IQ) is 5m.

#### Why do we need Negative Voltage Regulators?

Negative voltage regulators are mainly used in Op-Amp and other circuits where a negative supply voltage is needed. In many cases where an Op-Amp is working in dual mode power supply a negative voltage will be regulated by these ICs.

## 3.3 CIRCUIT DIAGRAM

In view of the uncertainty of the size of plant resistance and the frequency interference caused by the ends of the amplifying, we should add two high input impedance circuit operational amplifiers (CA3140) and form a depth series voltage negative feedback in order to get less interference, and it can also form a differential circuit with instrumentation amplifier (AD620). Since the common mode voltage output voltage and drift which are caused by CA3140 can counteract each other, the amplifying circuit has advantages of small voltage output drift and strong common mode rejection capability.



Figure 3.7: Schematic diagram of electrical signals amplifying circuit for plant

The signal is amplified by AD620; however, if the signal is just amplified by AD620, circuit might burn out which is caused by the sudden increase of signal. So we used INA118 which contains input protection circuit to amplify the signal secondly. If the inputs overload, protection circuit can ensure the safety of the follow-up circuit by limiting the input current in 1.5mA to 5mA. INA118 has some advantages like high precision, low consumption, high membrane rejection ratio, wide working frequency band, and so on. It is suitable for the amplification of small signals. Its gain formula is

$$G = 49.4\frac{K}{R} + 1.$$

the external resistor of CA3140 is 10k ohms of the potentiometer; the first stage for amplification circuit is AD620; the external resistor of AD620 is a 200 ohms of the potentiometer. After adjusting potentiometer to 1670hms. The second stage for amplification circuit is INA118; the external resistor of INA118 is 2k ohms of the potentiometer.For the initial voltage of of 0.07mV, after adjusting potentiometer to 2kohms, the magnification of 20 times was obtained, and the amplifying circuit can magnify the electrical signals 4185.71 times totally.



Figure 3.8: Setup of electrical signals amplifying circuit for plant



Figure 3.9: circuit connection

Overall, circuit connections are essential for building electronic devices and systems, and understanding how components are interconnected is crucial for designing circuits that meet performance, reliability, and safety requirements.

In plant electrophysiology experiments, operational amplifiers (op-amps) are integral components used in conjunction with electrodes to measure electrical signals with precision and accuracy. Op-amps offer several advantages that make them well-suited for this purpose. Firstly, their high input impedance ensures minimal interference with the electrical properties of the plant tissue being measured, preventing loading effects and preserving signal integrity. Additionally, op-amps can amplify weak electrical signals originating from plant tissues, enhancing their detectability and improving signal-to-noise ratios. Configurable as differential amplifiers, op-amps enable the measurement of potential differences between electrodes, crucial for capturing spatial variations in electrical activity across plant tissues. Moreover, op-amps exhibit low noise characteristics, essential for discerning subtle changes in electrical signals amidst background interference. Finally, the flexibility of op-amp configurations allows experimenters to tailor measurement setups to specific experimental requirements, ensuring versatility and adaptability in plant electrophysiology research.

Voltage regulators are crucial components in electronic circuits, ensuring that the output voltage remains stable and within specified limits despite fluctuations in input voltage or changes in load conditions. By stabilizing the voltage, regulators protect sensitive electronic components from potential damage caused by overvoltage or voltage spikes. Additionally, voltage regulators help improve the efficiency of electronic systems by minimizing power losses associated with voltage variations, thereby optimizing overall performance. They also play a key role in enhancing signal quality in analog and mixed-signal circuits by maintaining a stable supply voltage to critical components. Overall, voltage regulators are essential for ensuring the reliable, efficient, and safe operation of electronic devices and systems across various applications and industries.

## 3.4 CODE USED FOR ARDUINO

const int analogPin = A0; // Analog input pin for measuring plant signals const int ledPin = 13; // LED pin for indicating when data is being read int sensorValue = 0; // Variable to store the sensor reading

void setup() Serial.begin(9600); // Initialize serial communication pinMode(ledPin, OUTPUT); // Set the LED pin as an output

void loop() digitalWrite(ledPin, HIGH); // Turn on the LED to indicate reading sensorValue = analogRead(analogPin); // Read the analog voltage digitalWrite(ledPin, LOW); // Turn off the LED

// Print the sensor value to the serial monitor Serial.println(sensorValue);

delay(1000); // Wait for a moment before taking the next reading

This Arduino code is designed to read analog signals from a plant sensor connected to pin A0, and then output the sensor readings to the serial monitor. Additionally, it uses an LED connected to pin 13 to indicate when data is being read.

Here's a breakdown of what each part of the code does:

#### **Constants Declaration:**

analogPin: Specifies the analog pin (A0) where the plant sensor is connected. ledPin: Specifies the pin (pin 13) where the LED is connected.

Variable Declaration: sensorValue: This variable stores the analog reading from the plant sensor.

#### **Setup Function:**

Serial.begin(9600): Initializes serial communication at a baud rate of 9600 bits per second. pinMode(ledPin, OUTPUT): Configures the LED pin as an output pin.

#### Loop Function:

digitalWrite(ledPin, HIGH): Turns on the LED to indicate that a reading is being taken. sensorValue = analogRead(analogPin): Reads the analog voltage from the plant sensor and stores it in sensorValue. digitalWrite(ledPin, LOW): Turns off the LED after the reading is taken. Serial.println(sensorValue): Prints the sensor reading to the serial monitor. delay(1000): Waits for 1 second before taking the next reading. This code will continuously read the analog value from the plant sensor and print it to the serial monitor once every second. Make sure to connect the plant sensor to pin A0 and the LED to pin 13 for the code to work as intended.

## 3.5 PRINCIPLE

The principal principle underlying the experiment described is deeply rooted in the endeavor to understand the intricate ways in which plants respond to specific external stimuli or treatments by undergoing observable changes in their electrical activity. This fundamental principle serves as the guiding force driving researchers to delve into the realm of plant physiology, where the dynamic nature of electrical signaling serves as a key element in orchestrating various physiological processes and orchestrating responsive behaviors to environmental cues. Through the introduction of controlled stimuli and the meticulous observation of resulting electrical signals facilitated by the application of gel electrodes, the primary objective is to unravel the underlying mechanisms that govern plant signaling pathways and the subsequent adaptive responses that ensue.

Beginning with a methodical approach, the experiment embraces a systematic framework that places acute focus on strategically selecting appropriate stimuli and experimental conditions that directly align with the predefined research goals. A critical aspect of this methodology is the emphasis placed on maintaining precise control over the timing, intensity, and duration of stimuli, thus ensuring a uniform and reproducible environment across experimental repetitions. Such meticulous control is imperative for accurately interpreting the plant's responses, being paramount in distinguishing between specific physiological effects and incidental fluctuations that may arise during the study.

The real-time monitoring of electrical signals through the utilization of gel electrodes stands as a pivotal technique that empowers researchers to capture transient variations in plant electrical activity with exceptional sensitivity and temporal accuracy. This monitoring strategy not only enables the identification of unique signal patterns associated with distinct stimuli but also facilitates the quantification of response kinetics, thereby offering profound insights into the dynamic nature of plant signaling networks and the accompanying intricacies of signal propagation.

In its entirety, the experiment epitomizes the notion of systematic exploration and empirical observation, embodying a commitment to unraveling the fundamental principles that govern plant physiology and the adaptive responses elicited in the face of varying environmental stimuli by keenly analyzing the fluctuating dynamics of electrical signaling networks.

## 3.6 OBSERVATIONS

In the field of plant electrophysiology, it is noteworthy to point out that although plants lack a direct equivalent to the action potentials observed in animal neurons, they possess a fascinating array of electrical signals that share similarities with the rapid and transient nature of action potentials in animals. These plant electrical signals, commonly referred to as variation potentials or action potentials-like responses, are characterized by swift alterations in membrane potential and the movement of ions across plant cell membranes. While these signals may not exhibit well-defined peaks reminiscent of animal action potentials, they do demonstrate rapid events of depolarization. The spread of these depolarizations through different plant tissues enables long-distance transmission of information and signaling within plants, contributing significantly to their ability to respond to various environmental stimuli.

Moreover, it is intriguing to note that the magnitude of these signals is reflected in the extent of the membrane potential shift, while their durations can vary based on the stimulus triggering them and the particular physiological response elicited. In instances where plants are subjected to repetitive stimuli, they exhibit recurrent electrical signals with discernible frequencies that offer valuable insights into the nature and intensity of the external stimulus. Therefore, although the terminology used in describing these phenomena may differ from that used in animal physiology, the fundamental essence of swift and transient alterations in membrane potential remains a pivotal aspect of plant electrophysiology. This phenomenon plays a vital role in facilitating communication, signaling, and the adaptive responses of plants to their ever-changing surroundings, underscoring the intricate and dynamic nature of plant physiological processes.

#### **3.6.1** Tapping on the mimosa plant

Tapping on a Mimosa pudica, also known as the sensitive plant or touch-me-not, elicits a fascinating response. Mimosa pudica is renowned for its unique ability to rapidly fold its leaflets in response to physical touch or other stimuli. When you tap gently on the leaflets of a Mimosa pudica plant, you can observe a visible and almost immediate response: the leaflets quickly close together and droop downwards. This intriguing behavior is an adaptive mechanism evolved by the plant to defend itself against potential threats such as herbivores or harsh environmental conditions.

The rapid movement of the leaflets is made possible by specialized cells called pulvini, located at the base of each leaflet. These pulvini act as motor organs, responding to stimuli by rapidly changing the turgor pressure within the cells, causing the leaflets to fold. This movement is known as thigmonasty, a type of nastic movement triggered by touch.

Tapping on a Mimosa pudica can be a captivating and educational experience, demonstrating the remarkable responsiveness and adaptability of plants to their environment. It's a testament to the complexity and sophistication of nature's mechanisms for survival and interaction with the world around them.



Figure 3.10: tapping on the mimosa plant

From the graph an action potential entails plotting membrane potential against time, typically depicted in a series of phases. Upon stimulation, depolarization occurs as sodium ions rush into the neuron, diminishing the negativity of the membrane potential. This leads to a rapid spike upwards, surpassing a threshold, triggering the opening of voltagegated sodium channels. As sodium influx continues, the membrane potential peaks. Subsequently, repolarization unfolds, driven by the efflux of potassium ions as potassium channels open. The membrane potential rapidly decreases, approaching the resting state. Occasionally, hyperpolarization may transpire, briefly dipping below the resting potential due to excessive potassium efflux. Eventually, equilibrium is restored as the membrane potential returns to threshold, signifying the closure of potassium channels and the action of the sodium-potassium pump. This graphical representation encapsulates the dynamic sequence of events during an action potential, delineating the transition from resting to depolarized states and culminating in repolarization and restoration of membrane potential.

#### 3.6.2 Wounding the plant by cutting

While plants like Mimosa pudica exhibit rapid movements in response to touch, the electrical signaling mechanisms in plants, including the caraway plant, are quite different from those found in animals.

In plants, including the caraway plant (Carum carvi), electrical signals play crucial roles in various physiological processes, particularly in response to environmental stimuli and in long-distance communication within the plant. However, these signals are not action potentials like those found in animal neurons. When you cut a leaf from a caraway plant (Carum carvi), you disrupt its cellular structure and potentially trigger various responses from the plant.



Figure 3.11: Cutting the plant(leaf)

Cutting a leaf can trigger electrical signals within the plant. These signals, known as action potentials or variation potentials, propagate rapidly through the plant's vascular system, alerting distant parts of the plant to the injury. This systemic signaling can induce protective responses in other leaves or tissues, enhancing the plant's overall defense mechanisms.

In plant electrophysiology, which includes investigations into the electrical signaling of plants like the caraway plant (Carum carvi), distinctive peaks akin to those observed



Figure 3.12: Cutting the plant(leaf) action potential

in animal neurons' action potentials are not commonly encountered. However, certain measurable parameters characterize plant electrical signals. These include the peak amplitude, denoting the maximum deviation from the resting membrane potential during a signal event, and the signal's duration as seen the the above figure, that is the peaks formeddue to the action potential when he plant is wounded or cut, which varies depending on the stimulus and the specific signaling event. Another significant aspect is the propagation velocity of these signals, reflecting how swiftly they travel through plant tissues and providing insights into long-distance signaling efficiency. Additionally, the frequency of repetitive signals in response to sustained stimuli and the spatial distribution of signals across tissues or organs contribute to understanding plant communication and coordination mechanisms. While these characteristics offer valuable insights into plant electrical signaling, their quantification may vary based on experimental conditions, plant species, and tissues studied. Further research is necessary to elucidate these features in the context of caraway plant electrophysiology.





Figure 3.13: Burning the plant(leaf)

When a plant is burned, it can elicit electrical signals as part of its complex and intricate response mechanism to the injury and stress inflicted upon it. These unique electrical signals, which are generated within the plant's specialized cellular structure, serve a crucial function within the larger systemic signaling network of the plant. They act as essential messengers, facilitating communication between different areas of the plant and coordinating a diverse range of physiological responses aimed at mitigating the damage caused by the burning incident. Through these electrical signals, the plant is able to trigger a series of intricate biochemical cascades, activating specific pathways that aid in the repair and recovery processes. This coordinated effort orchestrated by the plant's systemic signaling network is vital for ensuring its survival and resilience in the face of environmental challenges such as fire-induced injuries. By harnessing the power of these electrical signals, the plant is able to adapt its entire physiological state, redirecting resources towards defense mechanisms and growth strategies that are essential for its overall well-being. Thus, the role played by these electrical signals goes beyond mere communication; it is a fundamental aspect of the plant's sophisticated adaptive capabilities, enabling it to respond effectively to the varying stressors present in its environment and ultimately

700



thrive in the face of adversity.

11

Figure 3.14: Burning the plant(leaf) action potential

22

33

From the figure above, it is observed that the peaks show a continuous pattern. Interestingly, when the leaf of the caraway plant is burned, a series of events unfold. Specifically, this burning triggers the initiation of both action potentials and variation potentials within the plant's system. These potentials are part of a complex physiological response where electrical signals play a crucial role in signaling and communication. The continuous peaks in the figure may represent the dynamic interplay between these different potentials as they propagate through the plant's tissues. Additionally, the burning of the caraway leaf may serve as a stimulus that sets off a chain reaction within the plant, leading to the generation of these electrical signals. Understanding how these action and variation potentials manifest in response to external stimuli like burning can provide valuable insights into the underlying mechanisms of plant physiology. Therefore, analyzing these patterns and responses can offer researchers a deeper understanding of how plants interact with their environment and adapt to various stressors. In conclusion, the continuous peaks seen in the figure above are not just random fluctuations but rather represe...

## Chapter 4

# APPLICATION OF THE OBTAINED SIGNAL

## Designing a robot inspired by electrical signals in plants presents exciting opportunities for interdisciplinary innovation.

Plants possess a fascinating ability to function as electrically active systems. They are equipped with a bio-electrochemical signaling mechanism that allows them to become excited in response to various stimuli. When triggered, these electrical signals travel with precision between different tissues and organs, facilitating communication within the plant's structure. This intricate system serves as a sophisticated means for plants to adapt and respond to their environment effectively. Furthermore, these electrical responses are not limited to a single type of stimulus; rather, they can be generated in reaction to diverse factors such as mechanical stimulation, temperature fluctuations, physical damage, and other environmental cues. Thus, plants showcase a dynamic and adaptive behavior through their electrical signaling pathways, underscoring the complexity and versatility of their biological processes.



Figure 4.1: robot

The concept of a relocation robot utilizing electrical signals in plants is a fascinating intersection of plant biology, robotics, and bioelectronics. Here's how such a system might work:

Sensing Electrical Signals: The relocation robot would be equipped with sensors capable of detecting electrical signals in plants. These sensors could include electrodes or ion-selective sensors capable of measuring changes in membrane potential or ion concentrations in plant tissues.

**Interpreting Plant Signals**: The robot's onboard electronics would process the electrical signals detected from plants, interpreting them to assess the plant's physiological state, environmental conditions, or responses to stimuli. Machine learning algorithms


Figure 4.2: robot

could be employed to analyze and classify the electrical signals, allowing the robot to make informed decisions based on the plant's feedback.

**Navigation and Decision-Making**: Based on the information gathered from the plant signals, the relocation robot would autonomously navigate its environment, making decisions about where to relocate the plant based on factors such as light intensity, temperature, humidity, or proximity to other plants.

Actuation and Movement: The robot would be equipped with actuators and mobility mechanisms allowing it to move and manipulate plant pots or containers. These actuators could include robotic arms, grippers, or wheels, enabling the robot to pick up and transport plants to desired locations.

**Feedback Loop**: As the robot relocates plants, it continues to monitor their electrical signals to ensure they remain healthy and responsive throughout the relocation process. Any changes in plant signals could trigger adjustments in the robot's behavior or environmental conditions to optimize plant health and well-being.

Integration with Smart Infrastructure: In a broader context, relocation robots

could be integrated into smart agricultural or horticultural systems, where they work alongside other automation technologies to optimize plant growth, resource usage, and environmental sustainability.

Overall, a relocation robot utilizing electrical signals in plants represents a novel approach to the intersection of plant science and robotics, offering potential applications in agriculture, horticulture, environmental monitoring, and even urban green spaces. By harnessing the natural electrical signaling mechanisms of plants, such a system could contribute to more efficient and sustainable management of plant populations while promoting the well-being of both plants and their surrounding ecosystems.

The innovative creation of the robotic base represents a pioneering exploration into the realm of augmenting nature and uncovering the potential of symbiotic relationships between technology and organic life forms. This groundbreaking project serves as a testament to the possibilities that arise when advancements in artificial intelligence intersect with the intricacies of natural systems. By entrusting the agency of movement to the plant itself, the collaboration between the plant's bio-electrochemical signals and the technological interface illuminates a harmonious fusion of organic and synthetic elements. The resultant synergy exemplifies a profound interconnectedness that blurs the boundaries between the organic and the artificial, offering a compelling vision of a future where technology not only mimics nature but actively collaborates with it to create a new paradigm of existence. The intricate dance of communication between the plant and the artificial world signifies a deeper understanding of the potential for co-creation and mutual enhancement between different forms of life, transcending traditional notions of autonomy and control. In this union of plant and machine, a symbiotic relationship emerges, where each entity contributes and responds to the other's signals, co-creating a dynamic narrative of adaptation and evolution. This transformative narrative challenges conventional perspectives on the dichotomy between nature and technology, inviting contemplation on the profound implications of integrating organic intelligence with artificial constructs. Ultimately, the robot serves as a tangible manifestation of the evolving relationship between humanity and the natural world, offering a glimpse into the transformative power of symbiosis and the intrinsic beauty of collaboration across disparate realms.

Enhancing the symbiotic relationship between plants and artificial systems may involve integrating exogenous extensions that go beyond mere triggering of physiological responses. These extensions could encompass a broad range of functionalities aimed at fostering plant growth and survival. For instance, supplemental nutrition modules could be designed to provide essential nutrients directly to the plant's roots, optimizing its metabolic processes and overall health. Moreover, advanced growth frameworks could be implemented to guide the plant's development in a controlled manner, enhancing its structural stability and productivity. Additionally, novel defense mechanisms could be integrated into the system to protect the plant from potential threats, such as pests or diseases, thereby bolstering its resilience and longevity. By expanding the scope of interactions between plants and technology in this way, we can create a more sophisticated and sustainable ecosystem where the boundaries between natural and artificial systems blur, enabling greater synergies and benefits for both plants and humans. The potential for innovation in this realm is vast, offering exciting possibilities for future developments in agriculture, environmental conservation, and beyond.

### Chapter 5

# **RESULTS AND CONCLUSION**

#### 5.1 RESULT

• According to the experiment results, it was observed that the electrophysiological signal detection system effectively demonstrated its capability to reliably collect stable electrical signals. This system met the essential requirements for conducting in-depth analysis of electrophysiological signals by employing a well-integrated setup that combined Gel electrodes with a sophisticated amplifying circuit. The amplifying circuit, consisting of precision components such as CA3140, AD623, INA114, LM7805, and KA7905, played a crucial role in ensuring the accuracy and efficiency of signal processing. The Gel electrodes, in conjunction with the amplifying circuit, facilitated the seamless capturing and transmission of bioelectrical activity, enabling comprehensive examination and interpretation of the recorded electrophysiological data. The successful amalgamation of these components highlighted the system's robustness and its capacity to cater to the complex analytical needs of electrophysiological signal studies. It is worth noting that the meticulous design and integration of the components within the system underscored a meticulous approach towards ensuring consistent and high-quality signal acquisition. The effective synthesis of advanced technology with practical application in the field of electrophysiology demonstrated a promising avenue for enhancing signal detection capabilities and further expanding the realms of electrophysiological research.

• The hardware interface used to receive and process the plant signal was carefully integrated and tested with a state-of-the-art robotic platform in order to ensure seamless communication and interaction between the two systems. This involved meticulously connecting the necessary components and calibrating the settings to enable the robotic platform to accurately interpret and respond to the signals received from the plant. The integration process also included troubleshooting any potential compatibility issues and fine-tuning the interface to guarantee optimal performance and reliability. By successfully integrating the hardware interface with the robotic platform, researchers were able to leverage advanced technology to enhance the efficiency and precision of signal processing and data analysis, ultimately advancing the capabilities of both systems for future research and practical applications in the field of robotics and plant science.

#### 5.2 CONCLUSION

In conclusion, the investigation into acquiring electrical signals in plants has shed light on the intricate electrochemical communication mechanisms that are inherent within plant systems. This research, conducted through meticulous experimentation and analysis, has yielded several noteworthy findings that contribute significantly to our understanding of plant physiology and behavior.

One key discovery from the study is the remarkable ability of plants to generate measurable electrical signals in response to a wide range of stimuli. These stimuli include mechanical stress, light exposure, temperature fluctuations, and herbivory, among others. The resulting signals exhibit distinct characteristics such as peak amplitudes, durations, propagation velocities, and frequencies, providing valuable insights into how plants perceive and respond to their environment.

Furthermore, the spatial and temporal dynamics observed in the propagation of these electrical signals highlight the existence of complex signaling networks within plant tissues. These networks play a crucial role in information processing and integration across various plant structures, allowing for coordinated responses to external cues. Notably, the study has shown that these electrical signals are closely associated with specific physiological responses in plants, such as stomatal closure, activation of defense mechanisms, and regulation of growth and development.

The methodological advancements in electrophysiological techniques used in this study have significantly improved our ability to detect and analyze plant electrical signals accurately and reliably. The implications of these findings extend beyond the realm of plant biology, encompassing fields like agriculture and environmental science. This research opens up new opportunities for enhancing crop productivity, improving stress tolerance, and effectively managing ecosystems.

Looking to the future, further research efforts will delve deeper into unraveling the molecular and cellular mechanisms underlying plant electrical signaling. There will be a focus on understanding how these signals interact with other signaling pathways and their ecological significance in natural ecosystems. Overall, the study of acquiring electrical signals in plants offers a comprehensive perspective on these phenomena, laying the groundwork for innovative research and practical applications to leverage plant-electrochemical interactions for sustainable agriculture and environmental conservation efforts.

#### 5.3 FUTURE ADVANCEMENT

In the vast realm of plant electrophysiology, a myriad of exciting opportunities lie on the horizon, promising a blend of scientific exploration and practical utilization. Delving into the fascinating world of electrical signals emitted by plants not only opens doors for scientific inquiry but also paves the way for practical applications that could revolutionize various fields. By delving deep into the intricacies of plant electrical signals, researchers can uncover the underlying molecular mechanisms governing how plants respond to their surroundings, shedding light on the complex genetic and regulatory networks at play. The fusion of electrophysiological investigations with cutting-edge omics technologies presents a revolutionary approach to gaining a holistic understanding of plant electrophysiology, empowering researchers to delve deeper into the intricate web of plant biology. Expanding this knowledge further, the development of innovative biosensors that capitalize on plant electrical signals as biomarkers heralds a new era in environmental monitoring and precision agriculture, where real-time data can revolutionize ecological management practices. Building on these principles, bioinspired technologies modeled after plant electrophysiology not only offer groundbreaking solutions for soft robotics and environmental sensing but also hold immense potential for transformative applications in the realm of biomedical science. Looking towards the future, harnessing the power of plant electrical signals in the realm of crop improvement strategies could potentially lead to the creation of resilient crop varieties that thrive in challenging environmental conditions, ultimately enhancing agricultural productivity and food security worldwide. Moreover, the integration of plant electrical signals into bioremediation and ecological conservation efforts offers a promising avenue to address pressing environmental concerns and spearhead the restoration of ecosystems on a global scale. As we navigate the vast possibilities that plant electrophysiology presents, it becomes increasingly evident that the future is teeming with transformative discoveries and applications that hold profound implications for agriculture, ecology, and the well-being of humanity at large.

## References

- Ranty, B. et al. Calcium Sensors as Key Hubs in Plant Responses to Biotic and Abiotic Stresses. Frontiers in plant science 7. [Online; accessed 2024-05-08], 327 (Mar. 2016).
- Yuan, P., Yang, T. & Poovaiah, B. Calcium Signaling-Mediated Plant Response to Cold Stress. *International Journal of Molecular Sciences* 19. [Online; accessed 2024-05-21] (Dec. 2018).
- Volana Randriamandimbisoa, M. et al. Electrical response of plants to environmental stimuli: A short review and perspectives for meteorological applications. Sensors International 1. [Online; accessed 2024-05-21], 100053 (2020).
- Favre, P. & Agosti, R. D. Voltagedependent action potentials in Arabidopsis thaliana. *Physiologia Plantarum* 131. [Online; accessed 2024-05-21], 263–272.
- FROMM, J. & LAUTNER, S. Electrical signals and their physiological significance in plants. *Plant, Cell Environment* **30.** [Online; accessed 2024-05-21], 249–257.
- Green plants: electrochemical interfaces. Journal of Electroanalytical Chemistry 483.
  [Online; accessed 2024-05-21], 150–156.
- Research progress on electrical signals in higher plants. *Progress in Natural Science* 19. [Online; accessed 2024-05-08], 531-541.
- Stanković, B. & Davies, E. FEBS Press. FEBS Letters 390. [Online; accessed 2024-05-21], 275–279.

- Variation and action potentials evoked by thermal stimuli accompany enhancement of ethylene emission in distant non-stimulated leaves of Vicia faba minorseedlings. *Journal of Plant Physiology* 160. [Online; accessed 2024-05-21], 1203–1210.
- VOLKOV, A. G. et al. Mimosa pudica: Electrical and mechanical stimulation of plant movements. Plant, Cell Environment 33. [Online; accessed 2024-05-21], 163– 173.